
1 

 

AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 

YECA GOVERNING BOARD 

Woodland Police Department, 1000 Lincoln Ave, “Community Room,” Woodland, CA 95695 

March 4, 2020 
2:00 P.M. Public Session 

 
 

ALL ITEMS ARE FOR ACTION UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED WITH AN ASTERISK (*) 

    

 

1. Call to Order (2:00 PM)  

 

 

2. Approval of the Agenda  

 

 

3. Announcements 

a. The National Public Safety Telecommunications Week runs from April 12th – 18th.  This is a 

nationally recognized time for citizens and co-workers alike to show their appreciation for 

professionals in the field of Public Safety Communications.    

 

b. The Organization of Public Safety Telecommunicators (O.P.S.T) will be recognizing the 

outstanding work for our Public Safety Dispatchers at this year’s banquet held at the 

Thunder Valley Casino in Lincoln on Saturday April 4th.  Tickets are $50 each, and can be 

purchased by emailing Molly Scott mscott@yolo911.org   

 

c. Laura Swink, Dispatcher III is being recognize for her outstanding performance during 

a life save.  Her calm and steady CPR instructions given to the patient’s family member  

contributed to a successful outcome.         
 

 

4. Public Comment * 

Speakers must state their name and city of residence for the record and limit their remarks to 

three minutes.  Members of the public audience may address the Governing Board on any item 

not on today’s agenda. No response is required and no action can be taken, however, the 

Governing Board may add the item to the agenda of a future meeting. 

   

5. Consent Agenda 

Consent Agenda items are considered to be routine and will be considered for adoption by one 

motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a member of the Governing 

Board, member of the audience, or staff requests that the Governing Board remove an item. If 

an item is removed, it will be discussed in the order in which it appears on the Agenda. 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the November 14, 2019, Regular Meeting 

b. Operations Division Report  

c. Current Year Budget Status Update     

mailto:mscott@yolo911.org


2 

d. 2019 4th Quarter – Dispatch to Que Report

e. 2019 Annual Calls for Service Report

6. Old Business – Information Only
a. General discussion on countywide Records Management System

b. General discussion on YECA Building

7. FY18/19 External Audit Presentation by Richardson & Company, CPA’s – Info Only

a. FY18/19 Fiscal Audit Report – Attachment

8. YECA Organizational Overview – Info Only

a. High level overview of organization per section

9. Closed Session

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation (GC54957)

Position Title: Executive Director

9. Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting – April 1, 2020

a. Unable to meet at Woodland PD due to all staff meeting.  Alternate location proposal is

to hold meeting at YECA to accommodate multiple special employee recognitions.

10. Items for Future Agenda

a. Dispatcher of the Year

b. Mission Critical Continuity of Operations Assessment & Presentation

c. Proposed FY21 Budget

d. New Accounting System Project Update

11. Adjournment
I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was available for public review and posted

on/or before February 28, 2020 on the bulletin board outside of the Yolo County, Erwin Meier

Administration Center, 625 Court St., Woodland, California and on the agency website:

http://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings

**The meeting room is wheelchair accessible and disabled parking is available.  If you are a person 

with a disability and you need disability related accommodations to attend the meeting, please contact 

Corina Macias at (530) 666-8919 or (530) 666-8909 (fax).  Requests for accommodations must be made 

at least two full business days before the start of the meeting. **

Click Here to View Report

http://www.yolo911.org/board-meetings


1 

 

 

YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY (YECA) 

GOVERNING BOARD 

November 14, 2019 

MINUTES 

 

 

 

The YECA Governing Board met on Thursday November 14, 2019 at the Woodland Police 

Department 1000 Lincoln Ave – Community Room, Woodland.  Chair Derrek Kaff called the 

meeting to order at 2:08 p.m. 

 

PRESENT: Primary Board Members: Derrek Kaff, City of Woodland, Steve Binns, City of 

West Sacramento, Tom Lopez, Yolo County, John Donlevy, City of Winters, Gary 

Fredericksen, Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation, Dena Humphrey, YECA Executive 

Director,      
    

Entry No.2 

Minute Order No. 2019-45 

Approval of the Agenda  

 

The Agenda was approved as presented 

 

MOTION: Lopez  SECOND: Fredericksen  AYES:  Kaff, Binns, Donlevy, Fredericksen, 

Lopez 

 

Entry No. 3 

Minute Order No. 2019-46; Announcements 

a. 2019 Northern CA APCO Preston Thomson Award of Excellence – Charles Keasler 

Executive Director, Dena Humphrey recognized Charles for receiving the 2019 

Northern California APCO Preston Thomson Award of Excellence 

b. Fire Chief Gary Fredericksen Resolution of Appreciation for Serving as Chair & Board 

Member    

Retirement resolution and plaque was presented by Chairperson Derrek Kaff to 

Chief Gary Fredericksen Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation for his eight years of service   

and contributions as a YECA Board Member.    

Entry No. 4 

Minute Order No. 2019-47; Public Comment - None 

   

Entry No. 5 

Minute Order No. 2019-48; Consent Agenda 

 

a. Approval of the Minutes from the October 2, 2019, Regular Meeting 

b. Operations Division Report  

c. Current Year Budget Status Update     

d. 2019 3rd Quarter – Dispatch to Que Report   

e. YECA Discrimination & Harassment Policy   

f. Payroll Third-Party Provider Change Update  

 

MOTION:  Lopez SECOND: Donlevy AYES: Kaff, Binns, Fredericksen, Donlevy, Lopez 



2 

 

 

 

Entry No. 6 

Minute Order No. 2019-49; Old Business – Information Only – No Action Items 

a. General discussion on countywide Records Management System 

b. Radio project update for Rumsey Radio Site  

 

Entry No. 7 

Minute Order No. 2019-50; YECA Building Architectural Assessment & Structural Analysis – 

Info Only 
a. Presentation from Comstock Johnson Architects, Dan Eriksson AIA, Principal providing 

assessment details for consideration of a remodel and expansion of the building 

b. YECA Facility Condition Assessment & Expansion Study, dated Nov 7, 2019      
 

Dan Eriksson with Comstock Johnson Architects Inc. presented to the board the 

Facility Condition Assessment & Expansion Study.  Assessment study was provided in 

the agenda to the board members.  See Agenda Item 7.b.   

Entry No. 8 - Approved 

Minute Order No. 2019-51; Motorola Radio Consoles Grant Submittal – Voted Item 

      a.  Staff summary outlining grant submittal to Yocha Dehe Community Grant for 

           Dispatch consoles to equip two work stations  
 

MOTION:  Lopez  SECOND: Fredericksen  AYES: Kaff, Binns, Donlevy, Fredericksen, Lopez 
 

Entry No. 9 - Approved 

Minute Order No. 2019-52; CAD Interface for IP Based Toning for Member Agency Fire 

Departments – Voted Item 
a. Staff summary outlining the features IP base toning offers to the Fire departments and costs    

Consideration to approve the purchase of an IP based toning systems for $60k 

Funding will be as follows, $50k will be from the contingency account held for 

equipment failures in restricted fund balance.  The balance of $10k would be 

absorbed within FY20 year’s budget 

MOTION:  Fredericksen  SECOND: Donlevy  AYES: Kaff, Binns, Lopez 
 

Entry No. 10 - Approved 

Minute Order No. 2019-53; YECA Co-Chair Assignment – Voted Item 
a. Election for Co-Chair assignment for FY20 

Derrek Kaff  - Chair 

Steve Binns- Co-Chair 

MOTION:  Donlevy  SECOND: Fredericksen  AYES: Kaff, Binns, Lopez, Fredericksen, Donlevy 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

 

 

Next Scheduled JPA Board Meeting – Proposal February 5, 2019  

 

 

Items for Future Agenda  

c. Mission Critical Continuity of Operations Assessment & Presentation  

d. FY19 External Annual Audit of Financials - CPA Presentation  

e. 2019 Calls for Service Report  

f. New Accounting System Project Update  

 

Adjournment: 
Meeting Adjourned 3:25 PM 

Minutes submitted by Corina Macias 



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p1 

5%
21%

74%

March 2020 Staffing

Vacancies In-Training Trained

STAFF REPORT 

March 4, 2020 

YECA Governing Board 

Dena Humphrey, Executive Director 

Leah Goodwin, Operations Manager 

November, December 2019 & January 2020 Combined Operations Division 

Report 

No action required; information only. 

Operations staff is currently engaged in the following: 

Agenda Item: 5.b 

Date:  

To: 

Thru:  

From:  

Subject: 

Recommendation: 

Summary: 

Staffing: 

1. Out of 41 funded operations positions:

Classification Filled Funded Vacant 

Supervisor 4 4 0 

Dispatcher III 4 4 0 

Dispatcher I/II 25 26 1 

Dispatch 

Assistant 4 5 1 

Over Hire 0 0 2 

TOTAL 37 41 4 

a. Sarah Roccaforte completed training on the West Sacramento Police console (3rd radio) and

began training on the Fire console December 11, 2019.

b. Morgan Boston has completed training on all four radio consoles.

c. Connie Kenton has completed training on all four radio consoles.

d. Tony Frasier has completed training on the West Sacramento Police console (3rd radio).

e. Lauren Katz has completed call-taking training and is scheduled to begin training on the Yolo

County Sheriff/Winter’s Police console March 4, 2020.

f. Michelle Pineda has completed call-taking training and has begun training on the Woodland

Police console February 10, 2020.

g. Tianna Dumas and Naiya Johnson have completed call-taking training.

h. Nichole Nari and Karina Zainasheff are in the call-taking phase of their training.

2. YECA had 2 trainees resign within this report period.

3. Dispatcher II Mayra Berumen-Perez has accepted a position with Vacaville Police Dispatch, her

last day was December 27, 2019.



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p2 

 

45,190, 27%

3,685, 2%

55,999, 34%

61,169, 37%

2019 YTD

Incoming Non-Emergency 

Lines

West Sacramento

Winters

Woodland

Yolo

3,240, 27%

234, 2%

3,850, 32%

4,749, 39%

2020 YTD

Incoming Non-Emergency 

Lines

West Sacramento

Winters

Woodland

Yolo

4. YECA has been provided notice of (3) retirements in 2020: Lee Sandoval, Dispatcher II (April, 

2020), Craig Priester, Dispatch Supervisor (May, 2020), Traci Fitzsimmons, Dispatcher II 

(December, 2020).     

 

5. YECA is currently recruiting for the next group of new hires, slated to begin June, 2020. 

 

 

 

Statistical Information: 

Monthly Phone Statistics:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 Phone Statistics:  

  Jan YTD 

9-1-1 3,923 3,923 

7-Digit 

Emergency 784 784 

AMR 108 108 

West Sacramento 3,240 3,240 

Winters 234 234 

Woodland 3,850 3,850 

Yolo 4,749 4,749 

Outgoing 5,563 5,563 

TOTAL 22,451 22,451 

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep O ct Nov Dec YTD

9-1-1 4,138 3,792 4,378 4,440 4,903 4,870 5,230 5,061 4,921 4,565 4,477 4,475 55,250

7-Digit Emergency 950 793 914 886 899 1,027 984 946 1,024 1,211 1,030 826 11,490

AMR 65 60 90 73 89 93 98 77 81 90 87 91 994

West Sacramento 3,612 3,285 3,757 3,802 3,665 3,767 3,961 4,288 4,115 3,714 3,685 3,539 45,190

Winters 271 247 282 335 313 329 342 332 316 362 272 284 3,685

Woodland 4,595 3,852 4,596 4,769 5,043 4,820 5,183 4,870 4,800 4,349 4,754 4,368 55,999

Yolo 5,399 4,699 5,208 5,294 5,358 5,020 5,066 4,914 4,962 5,283 5,465 4,501 61,169

Outgoing 5,599 5,201 5,937 5,626 6,088 6,056 6,155 6,258 6,134 6,517 5,916 5,867 71,354

TO TAL 24,629 21,929 25,162 25,225 26,358 25,982 27,019 26,746 26,353 26,091 25,686 23,951 305,131



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p3 

 

5,618, 
34%

795, 5%5,959, 
36%

4,058, 
25%

2020 YTD

CAD Events

West

Sacramento

Winters

Woodland

Yolo

Monthly 2019 CAD Events:  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Monthly 2020 CAD Events:  

 Jan YTD 

West Sacramento     

TOTAL 5,618 5,618 

Winters     

TOTAL 795 795 

Woodland     

TOTAL 5,959 5,959 

Yolo     

TOTAL 4,058 4,058 

Yocha Dehe     

TOTAL 37 37 

Arbuckle     

TOTAL 24 24 

Outside Agency/non-geo 
validated     

TOTAL 76 76 

UCD     

TOTAL 126 126 

GRAND TOTAL  16,693 16,693 

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

West Sacramento

TOTAL 5,916 5,354 6,339 6,156 6,301 6,413 6,480 6,610 6,371 6,400 5,595 5,515 73,450

Winters

TOTAL 570 453 531 686 639 655 785 774 624 661 627 595 7,600

Woodland

TOTAL 5,787 4,985 6,217 6,385 6,579 6,702 6,999 6,694 6,335 6,509 5,850 5,655 74,697

Yolo

TOTAL 3,938 3,682 3,634 3,842 3,613 3,625 3,811 4,008 3,793 4,255 4,377 3,574 46,152

Yocha Dehe

TOTAL 48 42 34 34 55 47 38 33 41 47 40 49 508

Arbuckle

TOTAL 50 36 38 34 33 42 42 43 36 61 44 16 475

Outside Agency/non-geo validated

TOTAL 83 44 88 60 66 88 49 68 67 69 46 728

UCD

TOTAL 111 103 92 107 99 91 82 102 130 205 144 79 1,345

GRAND TOTAL 16,503 14,699 16,973 17,304 17,385 17,663 18,237 18,313 17,398 18,205 16,746 15,529 204,955



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p4 

 

2019 Fire 

Events

West Sacramento

Woodland

Yolo County

UCD

Winters

Yocha Dehe

Arbuckle

2019 Fire CAD Events:  

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD 

West Sacramento                       

Fire 414 290 318 373 323 399 393 351 372 484 379 304 4,400 

Medical 468 449 504 491 505 507 496 459 492 485 503 507 5,866 

TOTAL 882 739 822 864 828 906 889 810 864 969 882 811 10,266 

Winters                           

Fire 61 76 52 97 40 45 37 46 43 50 70 53 670 

Medical 39 16 29 39 34 24 31 34 25 26 32 30 359 

TOTAL 100 92 81 136 74 69 68 80 68 76 102 83 1,029 

Woodland                         

Fire 342 358 348 384 399 371 375 346 368 534 434 359 4,618 

Medical 350 350 445 414 398 347 373 375 395 366 355 456 4,624 

TOTAL 692 708 793 798 797 718 748 721 763 900 789 815 9,242 

Yolo                           

Fire 440 610 512 811 488 486 399 478 468 530 1,106 373 6,701 

Medical 120 67 116 134 157 72 79 99 81 70 94 88 1,177 

TOTAL 560 677 628 945 645 558 478 577 549 600 1,200 461 7,878 

Yocha Dehe                         

Fire 12 15 12 11 17 11 18 11 16 16 19 12 170 

Medical 36 27 22 23 38 36 20 22 25 31 21 37 338 

TOTAL 48 42 34 34 55 47 38 33 41 47 40 49 508 

Arbuckle                         

Fire 35 19 18 18 12 31 23 27 19 33 32 10 277 

Medical 15 17 20 16 21 11 19 16 17 28 12 6 198 

TOTAL 40 36 38 34 33 42 42 43 36 61 44 16 465 

UCD                           

Fire 65 58 58 54 52 58 50 70 89 119 84 59 816 

Medical 46 45 34 53 47 33 32 32 41 86 60 20 529 

TOTAL 111 103 92 107 99 91 82 102 130 205 144 79 1,345 

ALL                           

Fire 1,369 1,368 1,260 1,694 1,279 1,343 1,295 1,329 1,329 1,770 2,124 1,170 17,330 

Medical 1,028 926 1,136 1,117 1,217 1,030 1,050 1,037 1,076 1,088 1,077 1,144 12,926 

TOTAL 2,397 2,294 2,396 2,811 2,496 2,373 2,345 2,366 2,405 2,858 3,201 2,314 30,256 

 

  



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p5 

 

2020 Fire Events

West Sacramento Woodland Yolo County UCD

Winters Yocha Dehe Arbuckle

2020 Fire CAD Events:  

  Jan YTD 

West Sacramento 

Fire 325 325            

Medical 506 506            

TOTAL 831 831            

Winters                

Fire 72 72            

Medical 33 33            

TOTAL 105 105            

Woodland              

Fire 378 378            

Medical 410 410            

TOTAL 788 788            

Yolo                

Fire 614 614            

Medical 79 79            

TOTAL 693 693            

Yocha Dehe              

Fire 11 11            

Medical 26 26            

TOTAL 37 37            

Arbuckle              

Fire 14 14            

Medical 10 10            

TOTAL 24 24            

UCD                

Fire 81 81            

Medical 45 45            

TOTAL 126 126            

ALL                

Fire 1,495 1,495            

Medical 1,109 1,109            

TOTAL 2,604 2,604            

 

 

 

 

 

 



Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p6 

 

336, 

43%

16, 2%

424, 

55%

2020 YTD Records Entries

West

Sacramento

Winters

Woodland

2019 CLETS Inquires/Returns: 

 

2020 CLETS Inquiries/Returns: 

  Jan YTD 

Inquiries 36,531 36,531 

Returns 59,039 59,039 

 

 

2019 Confidential Records Requests (Audio & CAD Print out): 

 

2020 Confidential Records Requests (Audio & CAD Print out): 

Jan YTD 

143 143 

 

2019 After-Hours Records Entries:   

 

2020 After-Hours Records Entries:  

  Jan YTD 

West 

Sacramento 336 336 

Winters 16 16 

Woodland 424 424 

TOTAL 776 776 

 

2019 Text to 9-1-1: 

 
 

2020 Text to 9-1-1: 

 Jan YTD 

TOTAL 25 25 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

Inquiries 35,218 32,321 38,049 40,723 38,296 40,811 40,321 40,582 38,280 35,984 33,643 31,679 445,907

Returns 56,917 52,235 61,493 65,814 61,892 65,956 65,164 65,586 61,866 58,155 54,372 51,198 720,648

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

132 62 158 117 165 158 170 165 136 152 151 124 1,690

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

West 

Sacramento 354 251 337 330 335 362 323 349 420 404 373 349 4187

Winters 9 14 17 36 59 24 25 10 21 14 22 26 277

Woodland 431 373 469 523 536 637 559 474 623 461 367 368 5821

TOTAL 794 638 823 889 930 1,023 907 833 1,064 879 762 743 10,285

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

TOTAL 15 10 15 10 9 15 15 12 15 19 13 18 166

file:///C:/Users/lgoodwin/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.MSO/Jan%202020/Sessions%20Per%20HourTEXT_Jan2020.pdf


Operations Monthly Division Report Nov & Dec, 2019 & Jan 2020  p7 

 

2019 ROSS Orders/Entries: 

 

 
 

2020 ROSS Orders/Entries: 

  Jan YTD 

ROSS 0 0 

  

Projects: 

 

1. Cell Tower PSAP Routing Audit  

2. Supervisor promotion process  

3. EMD-QA  

a. Quality Assurance reviews occurring weekly (increased to 15/week) 

4. Policy Manual Revisions/Re-format – FIRE Manual  

5. Records After-Hours Responsibilities Group  

6. Recruitment  

7. Next academy scheduled begins June 28, 2020 & tentative September & November 2020. 

8. Succession Planning 

9. 2020 In-Service Training Plan  

a. Annual training topics 

i. Emotional Intelligence (all staff over next 24 months) 

ii. Customer Service (all staff over next 24 months) 

iii. Tactical Dispatch 

iv. Active Shooter 

b. Dispatcher in Charge monthly update training (in progress)  

10. Radio Procedures Training  

a. WPD completed 

b. WSP TBD 2nd session 

c. YSO/WNP to be scheduled/offered 

11. Scheduling software research & selection 

12. Learning Management software review 

13. RapidLite Rapid Deploy Project- final review IP 

14. CalOES GIS Pilot Project 

15. Central Square CAD upgrade to new queues/completed Jan 2020  

16. Retirement planning 

17. National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week planning (April 12-April 18, 2020) 

 

 

 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec YTD

ROSS 0 0 0 0 0 21 1 5 7 6 1 0 41



    Agenda Item: 5.c 

YECA BUDGET MANAGEMENT SUMMARY
2019 / 2020    As of 10/31/19

 
   8% 17% 25% 33% 42% 50% 58% 67% 75% 83% 92% 100%

Line item JUL-19 AUG-19 SEPT-19 OCT-19 NOV-19 DEC-19 JAN-20 FEB-20 MAR-20 APR-20 MAY-20 JUN-20
360 3601-8350 ADMINISTRATION

Appropriations 2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$          2,049,919$  2,049,919$    
Expenditures 126,557$             237,892$             337,341$             575,827$             683,298$             749,837$             903,596$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                 -$                   
Percent Expended 6% 12% 16% 28% 33% 37% 44% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

  

360 3602-8351 OPERATIONS - DISPATCH

Appropriations 4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$          4,163,301$  4,163,301$    
Expenditures 434,640$             757,038$             1,019,199$          1,395,497$          1,685,743$          1,977,432$          2,305,475$          -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                 -$                   
Percent Expended 10% 18% 24% 34% 40% 47% 55% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

360 3601-8356 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Appropriations 681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$             681,290$     681,290$       
Expenditures -$                         72,952$               301,416$             406,316$             378,244$             408,319$             478,369$             -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                 -$                   
Percent Expended 0% 11% 44% 60% 56% 60% 70% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL for all budget units - B/U 360-1 Administration; 360-2 Operations Dispatch; 3601-8356-Information Technology
Appropriations 6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$  6,894,510$    
Expenditures 561,197$            1,067,882$         1,356,541$         1,971,324$         2,369,041$         2,727,269$         3,209,072$         -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                -$                  
Unencumbered 6,333,313$         5,826,628$         5,537,969$         4,923,186$         4,525,469$         4,167,241$         3,685,438$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$ 6,894,510$   
Percent Expended 8% 15% 20% 29% 34% 40% 47% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Estimated Revenue 6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$          6,894,510$  6,894,510$    
Realized Revenue 1,988,411$          2,883,833$          3,398,928$          4,584,020$          4,621,965$          4,623,293$          5,200,692$          -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                 -$                   
Unrealized Revenue 4,906,099$         4,010,677$         3,495,582$         2,310,490$         2,272,545$         2,271,217$         1,693,818$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$         6,894,510$ 6,894,510$   
Percent Realized 29% 42% 49% 66% 67% 67% 75% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

updated 11/6/19
 

 



PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 87              257 117              14 94              327 91           168 91              766 
2 125 1820 116           140 126          1,776 112           543 123          4,279 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 88              229 34              14 123              288 78           165 99              696 
2 195          1,541 84           138 174          1,499 100           530 169          3,708 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 118 28 0               -   146 39 58 3 131                70 
2 231 279 39                2 343 277 173 13 283              571 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 538 28 0               -   699 39 99 3 609                70 
2 1005 279 38                2 1174 277 329 13 1068              571 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

1 137              257 34              14 191              327 78           168 145              766 
2 319 1820 84           140 330          1,776 106           543 289          4,279 

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - All Calls - Including Available and Unavailable Units
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched After Law Supervisor Notification - No Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched after Law Supervisor Notification has Occurred

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to Law Supervisor Notified - No Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to the Law Supervisor Notification of No Units Available

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - Units Available
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Quarter 4, 2019 Law Call Statistics

Call Processing Time - All Calls
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

WDP WNP WSP YSO Total

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
35 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET ~ WOODLAND, CA 95695

(530) 666.8900 ~ Fax (530) 666.8909



PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 45             532 47               24 53             567 50                  6 66             176 52             1,305 
Code 3 64          1,586 65             166 63          1,933 43             117 63          1,061 63             4,863 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 17             532 34               24 20             567 51                  6 21             176 20             1,305 
Code 3 21          1,586 21             166 23          1,933 17             117 25          1,061 22             4,863 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 36              299 59                8 44              173 69                4 69                94 44                578 
Code 3 67              520 74              84 70              657 20              30 62              655 66             1,946 
Code 2 57              233 41              16 58              394 34                2 63                82 57                727 
Code 3 62          1,066 56              82 60          1,276 42              87 64              406 61             2,917 

PRIORITY
Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls Average # of Calls

Code 2 18              299 66                8 23              173 69                4 23                94 21                578 
Code 3 27              520 25              84 32              657 20              30 28              655 29             1,946 
Code 2 17              233 18              16 19              394 16                2 18                82 18                727 
Code 3 18          1,066 18              82 18          1,276 16              87 21              406 18             2,917 

Call Type WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Fire Call Types

Medical Aid Call Types

Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

Call Processing Time - Fire and Medical
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

Call Type WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Fire Call Types

Medical Aid Call Types

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - Fire and Medical

Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched - All Fire Calls
Average Seconds from Pending Queue Entry to First Unit Dispatched

WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Quarter 4, 2019 Fire Call Statistics

Call Processing Time - All Fire Calls
Average Seconds from First Keystroke to Pending Queue Entry

WDL WNF WSF YDF County Total

Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
35 NORTH COTTONWOOD STREET ~ WOODLAND, CA 95695

(530) 666.8900 ~ Fax (530) 666.8909



Yolo 

Emergency 

Communications 

Agency 

2019 

Annual Calls  

For Service Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Table of Contents 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2019 statistics                                          

cad events      3 

phone calls      3 

all agencies      4 

city of winters       5 

city of woodland      6 

city of west Sacramento    7 

county of yolo      8 

University of California Davis   9 

Yocha dehe wintun nation  10 

Arbuckle     11 

YECA – Yolo 
Emergency 
Communications 
Agency 

EMD – Emergency 
Medical Dispatcher 

CLETS – California 
Law Enforcement 
Telecommunications 
System 

CAD – Computer 
Aided Dispatch  

JPA – Joint Powers 
Authority 

 



 

Pa
ge

1 

CAD Events & All Phone 

 

2019 Annual Report   Page 3 

 

 

YECA utilizes TriTech CAD software to support the 
complexities of YECA’s multi-jurisdictional environment.  

 

     A       ALL CAD Events = 

                 204,966 
             +1.5% from 2018 
 

 

    All Fire Events =                      All Law Events= 

                       17,330                                          171,344 

 

 

             All Medical Events=  All Support Events      

                       12,926                                                3,366 

           

YECA utilizes AT&T’s VESTA phone system to retrieve and 
process incoming and outgoing calls. 

 

 

   66,740                            71,354  167,037   305,131 
9-1-1 Calls             Outgoing Calls        Non-Emergency Calls      Total Calls 
+6% from 2018                     +1% from 2018                     -1% from 2018                            +1% from 2018                      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
             
  



All Agencies  

 

2019 Annual Report Page 4 

 

 

 

 

Overall YECA 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
Calls for Services       

Law 159,027 160,532 1% 
Fire 16,789 17,330 3% 

Medical 11,940 12,926 8%  
Police Records Entries* 9,254 10,285 11% 

Probation 2,620 3,082 18% 
Public Works/Support 2,734 3,366 23% 

Animal Control 7,734 7,730 -.05% 
Total 210,098 215,251 2% 

 

2% overall increase in workload; increase in medical calls 
(8%) result in additional time spent on call handling 
(Emergency Medical Dispatch instructions) 

*weighted by time  

 

36%

4%

36% 23%

0%
0%

1%

1%

2019 OVERALL STATISTICS
West Sacramento Winters Woodland Yolo Yocha Dehe Arbuckle UCD



City of Winters 

 

2019 Annual Report page 5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency 
 

 

 

 

 

 

*weighted by time  

 

Agency 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
City of Winters    

Police 7,421 6,307 -15% 
Police Records Entries* 376 277 -26% 

Fire 635 670 6% 

Medical 336 359 7% 
Public Works 46 64 39% 

Animal Control 237 200 -16% 
CLETS Returns 27,276 28,826 6% 

Phone Calls 12,109 10,314 -15% 
Total 48,436 47,017 -3% 



City of Woodland 

 

2019 Annual Report page 6 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
City of Woodland       

Police 63,884 61,857 -3% 
Police Records Entries* 5,025 5,821 16% 

Fire 4,655 4,618 -1% 
Medical 4,415 4,624 5% 

Public Works 977 1,167 19% 
Animal Control 2,599 2,431 -6% 
CLETS Returns 259,118 266,640 3% 

Total Phone Calls 115,027 112,898 -2% 
Total 455,700 460,056 1% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*weighted by time  

 

 



City of West Sacramento 

 

2019 Annual Report page 7 

 

 

 

Agency 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
City of West Sacramento       

Police 56,070 60,345 8% 
Police Records Entries* 3,853 4,187 9% 

Fire 4,297 4,400 2% 
Medical 5,498 5,866 7% 

Public Works 467 541 16% 
Animal Control 2,260 2,298 2% 
CLETS Returns 238,662 259,433 9% 

Total Phone Calls 105,947 109,847 4% 
Total 417,054 446,917 7% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*weighted by time  

 

 



County of Yolo 

 

2019 Annual Report page 8 

 

 

 

 

Agency 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
County of Yolo        

Sheriff 31,652 30,718 -3% 
Fire 6,356 6,701 5% 

Medical 926 1,177 27% 
Public Works 502 717 43% 

Animal Control 2,638 2,801 6% 
District Attorney 37 18 -51% 

Maintenance 0 18 180% 
Probation 2,620 3,082 18% 

Social Services 742 820 11% 
Mental Health 0 0 0% 

Environmental Health 8 7 -13% 
Communications 0 0 0% 

Explosive Ordinance 32 40 25% 
Fire Investigative Unit 0 0 0% 

Fire Service Misc. 365 365 0% 
Yolo Narcotics 42 18 -57% 
Public Guardian 25 32 28% 
CLETS Returns 156,835 165,749 6% 

Total Phone Calls 69,621 70,180 1% 
Total 272,401 282,443 4% 

 

Agency 
 



University of California Davis  

 

2019 Annual Report page 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract Fire 
2018 
Total 

2019 
Total 

% 
Change 

UC Davis Fire      
Fire 404 816 102% 

Medical 218 529 143% 
Total 622* 1,345 116% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     *calls for service 7/1/2018-12/31/2018 



Yocha Dehe Fire  

 

2019 Annual Report page 9 

 

 

 

 

 

Agency 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation  

Fire 169 170 1% 
Medical 343 338 -1% 

Total 512 508 -1% 



Arbuckle Fire  

 

2019 Annual Report page 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract Fire 2018 Total 2019 Total % Change 
Arbuckle       

Fire 273 277 1% 
Medical 187 198 6% 

Total 460 465 1% 
 





 


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 


Independent Auditor’s Reports, 


Basic Financial Statements and  


Required Supplementary Information 


 


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentional Left Blank 







 
Table of Contents 


 
Page(s) 


 
Independent Auditor’s Report ................................................................................................................ 1-2 
 
Basic Financial Statements: 
 


Statement of Net Position – Governmental Activities ..................................................................... 3 
 
Statement of Activities – Governmental Activities ......................................................................... 4 
 
Balance Sheet – General Fund ......................................................................................................... 5 
 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position ............................................ 6 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Change in 
 Fund Balance – General Fund ...................................................................................................... 7 
 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
 Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities ............................................................... 8 
 


 Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ................................................................................... 9 - 30 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
  
 Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Rations ................................................ 31 
 
 Schedule of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability ........................................ 32 
 
 Schedule of YECA’s Pension Contributions ................................................................................. 33 
 
 Notes to the Required Supplementary Information ....................................................................... 34 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
  Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund  ...................................................................... 35-36 
 
 Budget and Budgetary Accounting Note ....................................................................................... 37 
 
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited): 
 
 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
  Balance – Budget and Actual – Budgetary Authority ........................................................... 39-43 
 
 
Other Report: 
 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
   and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
   Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ....................... 45-46 
 
   
 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 







550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 


Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 


1 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 


To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


Report on the Financial Statements 


We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
(YECA) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise YECA’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 


Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 


Auditor’s Responsibility 


Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.  Those standards require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.  


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 


Opinion 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of YECA as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as accounting 
systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special districts. 







To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 


2 


Other Matters 


Required Supplementary Information 


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of changes in net 
OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedule of pension 
contributions and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 


Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements 
is not affected by this missing information. 


Other Information 


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
YECA’s financial statements.  The budgetary comparison schedules by budgetary unit are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required pat of the basic financial statements.  These schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund 
financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 


Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 


In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 20, 2020 on our 
consideration of YECA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering YECA’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 


 
January 20, 2020







 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,415,850$     
Due from other governments 87,667            
Prepaid expense 228,067          
Capital assets:


Nondepreciable 145,623          
Depreciable, net 4,033,797       


Total Assets 6,911,004       


DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES


Related to OPEB 76,939            
Related to pensions 1,692,877       


1,769,816       


LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 71,437            
Salaries and benefits payable 134,111          
Accrued interest 15,070            
Unearned revenue 24,366            
Long-term liabilities:


Due within one year:
Capital leases 258,731          
Accrued compensated absences 168,546          


Due in more than one year:
Capital leases 1,598,866       
Net OPEB obligation 1,748,382       
Net pension liability 3,407,342       


Total Liabilities 7,426,851       


DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pensions 364,804          


NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,321,823       
Unrestricted (1,432,658)     


Total Net Position 889,165$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Net Position
Governmental Activities


June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
3







PROGRAM EXPENSES
Public safety - 911 communications


Salaries and employee benefits 4,541,264$     
Services and supplies 970,855          
Other 2,022              
Depreciation 613,759          


Interest on long-term debt 130,724          
Total Program Expenses 6,258,624       


PROGRAM REVENUES
Charges for services 963                 
Operating grants and contributions 5,871,272       
Capital grants and contributions 519,884          


Total Program Revenues 6,392,119       


Net Program Revenue 133,495          


GENERAL REVENUES
Interest 71,181            
Loss on disposal of capital assets (2,480)            
Other 1,499              


Total General Revenues 70,200            


Change in Net Position 203,695          


Net Position - beginning of year, as restated 685,470          


Net Position - end of year 889,165$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Activities
Governmental Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
4







6/30/19
ASSETS
Cash and investments 2,415,850$     
Due from other governments 87,667            
Prepaid items 228,067          


Total Assets 2,731,584$     


LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:


Accounts payable 71,437$          
Salary and benefits payable 134,111          
Unearned revenue 24,366            


Total Liabilities 229,914          


Fund Balance:
Nonspendable - prepaid items 228,067          
Assigned:


Encumbrances 43,245            
Equipment Failures 50,000            
Capital asset replacement 300,000          
Subsequent year's budget 400,000          
General reserves 900,000          


Unassigned 580,358          
Total Fund Balance 2,501,670       


Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 2,731,584$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Balance Sheet
General Fund
June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
5







Fund balance - General Fund 2,501,670$     


Amounts reported in the statement of net position are different because:


Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
 and, therefore, are not reported in the General Fund. 4,179,420       


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB are not
 reported in the General Fund. 1,769,816       


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in
 the General Fund. (364,804)        


Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
 therefore, are not reported in the General Fund.


Net OPEB obligation (1,748,382)     
Net pension liability (3,407,342)     
Accrued interest (15,070)          
Capital lease (1,857,597)     
Compensated absences (168,546)        


Net position - Governmental Activities 889,165$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet
to the Statement of Net Position


June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
6







REVENUES
Intergovernmental:


Federal 10,230$          
State 48,004            


Contributions 6,273,366       
Interest 71,181            
Other 62,018            


Total Revenues 6,464,799       


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 4,884,442       
Services and supplies 970,855          
Other 2,022              


Debt service:
Principal 249,737          
Interest 132,750          


Capital outlay 305,628          
Total Expenditures 6,545,434       


Change in Fund Balance (80,635)          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 2,582,305       


Fund Balance - end of year 2,501,670$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Change in Fund Balance - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
7







Change in fund balance - General Fund (80,635)$        


Amounts reported in the statement of activities are different because:


The General Fund reports capital outlay as expenditures.  However,
 in the statement of activities, the cost of those items is allocated
 over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.


Capital outlay 305,628$   
Loss on disposal of capital assets (2,480)        
Depreciation expense (613,759)    (310,611)        


Repayment of long-term liabilities are expenditures in the General
 Fund, but reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 249,737          


Other expenses in the statement of activities that do not use current
 financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the General
 Fund.


Change in compensated absences 4,619         
Change in net OPEB liability (69,113)      
Change in net pension liability and related amounts 407,672     
Change in accrued interest 2,026         345,204          


Change in net position - Governmental Activities 203,695$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
8







 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY 
 


Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019 


 
 


9 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Reporting Entity 
 


The Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), was established June 21, 1988 by Agreement 
No. 88-133, which is a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (Agreement) pursuant to Government Code 
6500 et seq. 
 
YECA includes all operating activities considered to be a part of YECA.  YECA reviewed the criteria 
developed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in its issuance of Statement No. 
14, which was amended by Statement No. 61, relating to the financial reporting entity to determine 
whether YECA is financially accountable for other entities.  YECA has determined that no other outside 
entity meets the above criteria, and therefore, no agency has been included as a component unit in 
YECA’s financial statements. 
 
The parties making up the Joint Powers Agency (JPA) are the County of Yolo and the cities of Woodland, 
West Sacramento, Winters and the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation.  The parties each appoint members to the 
governing board of YECA. 
 
YECA was created to provide mutual benefits, such as cost savings and greater operational efficiency, to 
the county and the cities through the sharing of communication facilities, emergency services, and 
increased management control. 
 
Each party retains ownership of its radio frequencies, but allows the use of those frequencies by YECA. 
 
Under the Agreement, each party in YECA contributes to the budget of YECA.  These contributions are 
based on various formulas outlined in Section 9.2 of the JPA Agreement. 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting 
 


Government-Wide Statements 
 


The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities display information about the primary 
government (YECA).  These statements include the financial activities of the overall government. 
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
YECA's governmental activity.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function or segment.  Program revenues include charges for services, grants and contributions, as well as 
contributions received from JPA members that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of YECA.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including investment 
income, are presented instead as general revenues. 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Revenues from grants, 
entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have 
been satisfied. 







 


10 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation and Accounting (continued) 
 


Fund Financial Statements 
 


Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund. YECA’s General Fund accounts for all 
of its financial resources and activities. The fund financial statements are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under this method, 
revenues are recognized when measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period.  
"Measurable" means the amount of the transaction can be determined and "available" means collected 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  
YECA uses an availability period of 365 days for revenue recognition for its General Fund revenues. 
Those revenues susceptible to accrual include charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, 
contributions, and investment income.  Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, 
as under accrual accounting. 
 
Nonexchange transactions, in which YECA gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or 
giving) value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations.  On a modified accrual basis, 
revenues from nonexchange transactions are recognized when all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied and have met the 365-day availability criteria.  
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 


YECA maintains cash and investments with the Yolo County Treasurer (Treasurer) in a cash and 
investment pool.  On a quarterly basis, the Treasurer allocates interest to participants based upon their 
average daily balances.  Required disclosure information regarding the categorization of investments and 
other deposit and investment risk disclosures can be found in the County of Yolo's (County) 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The County’s financial statements may be obtained by 
contacting the County’s Department of Financial Services (DFS) at 625 Court Street, Room 103, 
Woodland, California 95776 or from the County’s website at www.yolocounty.org.  The Yolo County 
Treasury Oversight Committee oversees the Treasurer's investments and policies. 
 
YECA has no deposit or investment policy that addresses interest rate, credit, or custodial credit risk.  
Investments held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.   
 
Capital Assets 
 


Capital assets have been acquired for general operational purposes.  Assets purchased are recorded as 
expenditures in the General Fund and capitalized at cost or estimated cost where no historical records are 
available in the government-wide financial statements. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated 
fair market value on the date contributed. YECA defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual 
cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Capital assets, including 
intangible assets, are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 15 
years in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations when incurred.  Costs of assets sold or retired, and the 
related amounts of accumulated depreciation, are eliminated in the year of sale or retirement, and the 
resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.  In governmental funds, the sale of capital assets is 
included in the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance as proceeds from sale. 







 


11 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Pensions 
 


For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and 
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
GASB Statement No. 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 


Valuation Date:  July 1, 2017 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2018 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 


 
Other Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB) 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 
YECA Retiree Benefits Plan (the Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan.  For this purpose, the Plan 
recognizes benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) when currently due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.   
 
GASB Statement No. 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information 
within certain defined timeframes.  For this report, the following timeframes are used: 
 


Valuation Date:  July 1, 2017 
Measurement Date: June 30, 2018 
Measurement Period: July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 


 
 
 
Compensated Absences 
 


Unused vacation leave, compensatory time off, floating holidays and additional time off, may be 
accumulated up to a specified maximum and is paid at the time employment with YECA is terminated.  
YECA is not obligated to pay for unused sick leave if employment is terminated prior to retirement. 
 
The accumulated benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them.  In the normal 
course of business, compensated absences do not require the use of current financial resources as all 
payments of these accumulated benefits will be funded from appropriations of the year in which they are 
to be paid; therefore, the total liability is recorded in the government-wide financial statements only.  A 
liability for compensated absences is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, because of employee resignations and retirements and is currently payable.  In accordance with 
the provisions of GASB No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for 
nonvesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay benefits. 
 
 
 
 







 


12 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position 
 


Fund Balance 
 


The provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, established the following classification of fund balance: 
 


 Nonspendable Fund Balance – amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form, or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  YECA has 
nonspendable fund balance for the prepaid items (not in spendable form). 


 Restricted Fund Balance – amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either (a) 
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
YECA has no restricted fund balance. 


 Committed Fund Balance – amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action by the entity’s “highest level of decision-making authority,” 
which YECA considers to be resolutions adopted by YECA’s Board of Directors.  YECA has no 
committed fund balance.  


 Assigned Fund Balance – includes amounts of fund balance that reflect YECA's intended use of 
resources for specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed.  YECA has assigned 
fund balance for encumbrances, the portion used to balance the subsequent year’s budget, and 
reserves.  


 Unassigned Fund Balance – includes resources in fund balance that cannot be classified into any 
of the other categories. 


 
YECA's spending priority is to spend restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and 
unassigned fund balance. 
 
Reserves 
 


YECA has established a policy to set aside funds into three designated reserves to address unforeseen 
emergencies or disasters, significant changes in the economic environment, and key infrastructure and 
capital projects.  These three reserves are the Equipment Failure, General Reserve and the Capital/Special 
Projects Reserve.  The balance of these reserves as of June 30, 2019 are $50,000, $900,000 and $300,000 
respectively. 
 
Reserve Levels – YECA commits to maintaining the General Reserve at a minimum of 20% of General 
Fund annual operating expenditures (minus one-time expenditures).  The General Fund Reserve policy is 
reviewed by the Board as part of the annual operating budget review and adoption process.  
Appropriations of any reserve require formal Board authorization. 
 
General Reserve – Funds reserved under this category shall be used to mitigate costs associated with 
unforeseen emergencies, including natural disasters or catastrophic events that impair the operating 
infrastructure of YECA’s communications.  Should unforeseen and unavoidable events occur that require 
the expenditure of YECA’s resources beyond those provided for in the annual budget, the Executive 
Director or designee shall have authority to approve appropriations with the knowledge of the Chair or 
Co-chair of the Board.  The Executive Director or designee shall then present to the Board a budget 
amendment confirming the nature of the emergency and authorizing the appropriation of reserve funds.  
Other funds reserved under this category shall be used to mitigate budgetary issues and/or one-time 
expenditures that will result in future efficiencies and/or budget savings or as deemed by the Board for 
authorization. 







 


13 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Fund Balance/Net Position (continued) 
 


Fund Balance (continued) 
 
In keeping with the principles discussed in this policy, the Board will develop a 1 to 7 year reserve 
replenishment plan to meet the minimum threshold of 20% of General Fund ongoing expenditures, 
excluding one-time expenditures.   
 
At the end of each fiscal year, YECA reports on the audited year-end budgetary fiscal results.  Should 
actual General Fund revenues exceed expenditures, a year-end operating surplus shall be reported.  Any 
year-end surplus that results in the General Fund balance exceeding the level required by the reserve 
policy shall be available for allocation for the following, subject to Board approval: 
 


 Capital/Special Projects Reserve 
 One-time funding, non-recurring needs 
 Member share reductions 


 
Capital/Special Projects Reserve – Funds reserved under this category are designated for key 
infrastructure and capital/special projects as identified in YECA’s 10-year Capital Improvement Plan, as 
there is no ongoing funding source to support YECA’s capital needs.   
 
Net Position 
 


Net position comprises the various net earnings from YECA’s revenues, expenses, and contributions of 
capital.  Net position is classified in the following three components: 
 


 Net Investment in Capital Assets – Consists of all capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
and any related outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of 
those assets. 
 


 Restricted Net Position – Restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 
related to those assets. 
 


 Unrestricted Net Position – All other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net investment in capital assets."  


 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is YECA's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Members' Contributions 
 


Each member of YECA contributes annually based on YECA's budget.  Members' contributions are 
determined by various formulas set forth in the Joint Powers Agreement.  Contributions are payable in 
quarterly installments before the first day of each quarter. 
 
Estimates 
 


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 







 


14 
 


NOTE 1:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Implementation of new GASB Statements 
 
In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This 
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs). 
An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A 
government that has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible 
capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in this Statement.  
 
This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and 
a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs. This Statement requires that recognition occur 
when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable.  This statement did not impact YECA during 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.  
 
In April of 2018 GASB issued Statement No. 88, “Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including 
Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements.”  The objective of this Statement is to improve the 
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct 
borrowings and direct placements.  It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when 
disclosing information related to debt.  This statement did not impact YECA during fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2019 in that leases are excluding from the requirements of this Statement. 
 
 
NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS  
 
Deposits held in the County's investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.  As of 
June 30, 2019, YECA's total cash in the County of Yolo Treasury was $2,415,550. 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019, are classified in the accompanying statement of net position as 
follows: 
 


Cash in County Treasury 2,415,550$     
Imprest cash 300                 


Total Cash and Investments 2,415,850$     
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


15 
 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code  
 


The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for YECA by the California 
Government Code.  The table also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code that 
address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  
 


Authorized Investment Type
Maximum 
Maturity


Maximum 
Percentage of 


Portfolio


Maximum 
Investment in 


One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years No limit No limit
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years No limit No limit
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% No limit
Repurchase Agreements 1 year No limit No limit
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value No limit
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% No limit
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% No limit
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A No limit No limit
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No limit No limit
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A No limit No limit  


 
Investments in the County of Yolo Investment Pool 
 
YECA’s cash is held in the County of Yolo Treasury.  The County maintains an investment pool and 
allocates interest quarterly to the various funds based upon quarterly average daily cash balances.  
Investments held in the County’s investment pool are available on demand and are stated at fair value.  
The fair value of the County’s investment pool is determined by the fair value of the underlying 
investments, which represent level 2 inputs under the fair value hierarchy.  Information regarding fair 
value measurements of the County pool may be found in the notes to the County of Yolo financial 
statements at http://countyofyolo.org/general-government/general-government-departments/financial-
services/publications. 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity its fair value is 
to changes in market interest rates.  The weighted average maturity of the County’s external investment 
pool as of June 30, 2019 was 449 days. 


  
Credit Risk 
 


Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder 
of the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization (Standard and Poor’s).  The County’s external investment pool is not rated. 
 







 


16 
 


NOTE 2:  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 


Custodial risk is the risk that the government will not be able to recover its deposits or the value of its 
investments that are in the possession of an outside party.  Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local 
government’s indirect deposits or investments in securities with governmental investment pools (such as 
the County of Yolo investment pool).  
 
 
NOTE 3:  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, is as follows: 
 


Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019


Capital assets not being depreciated:
   Construction in process -$                     145,623$       -$               145,623$             


Capital assets being depreciated:
   Improvements other than buildings 150,000$              -$               -$               150,000$             
   Equipment 6,777,969             160,005         (4,251)            6,933,723            
   Furniture and fixtures 129,033                -                     -                     129,033               
   Vehicles 40,520                  -                     -                     40,520                 
      Total capital assets, being depreciated 7,097,522             160,005         (4,251)            7,253,276            


Less accumulated depreciation:
   Improvements other than buildings (67,170)                (7,500)            -                     (74,670)               
   Equipment (2,378,751)           (605,119)        1,771             (2,982,099)          
   Furniture and fixtures (121,050)              (1,140)            -                     (122,190)             
   Vehicles (40,520)                -                     -                     (40,520)               
        Total accumulated depreciation (2,607,491)           (613,759)        1,771             (3,219,479)          


        Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 4,490,031             (453,754)        (2,480)            4,033,797            


        Governmental activities capital assets, net 4,490,031$           (308,131)$      (2,480)$          4,179,420$          


 


Depreciation expense was charged to the public safety - 911 communications function in the amount of 
$613,759 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
 
NOTE 4:  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019: 
 


Restated Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within


July 1, 2018 Additions Retirements June 30, 2019 One Year


Capital lease 2,107,334$    -$                   (249,737)$      1,857,597$    258,731$       
Compensated absences 173,165         226,894         (231,513)        168,546         168,546         
Net OPEB liability 1,692,049      56,333           -                     1,748,382      -                     
Net pension liability 3,485,446      -                     (78,104)          3,407,342      -                     


Total Long-Term Liabilities 7,457,994$    283,227$       (559,354)$      7,181,867$    427,277$       


 







 


17 
 


NOTE 5:  LEASES 
 
Operating Leases 
 
YECA is committed under various non-cancelable operating leases for equipment and property.  YECA 
exercised the option to renew for an additional 10 years and has the option to extend for four more 10 
year terms, subject to adjustment of the rent to current market rate.  Future minimum operating lease 
commitments are as follows: 
 


Fiscal Year
Ending


June 30, Equipment Property Total


2020 4,377$      43,543$   47,920$   
2021 4,377        44,849     49,226     
2022 260           46,194     46,454     
2023 -                47,580     47,580     
2024 -                49,007     49,007     


2025-2029 -                267,990   267,990   


9,014$      499,163$ 508,177$  


 
 
Rent expenditures were $47,506 for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


18 
 


NOTE 5:  LEASES (continued) 
 
Capital Leases 
 
On November 18, 2010, YECA and the County of Yolo as co-issuer, issued $3,724,000 in ARRA-
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds (the Bonds) to finance (and reimburse for prior 
expenditures related to) the expansion, refurbishment, improvement, and equipping of its regional 
emergency communications system.  Net proceeds, after the payment of issuance costs, were deposited 
with Deutsch Bank, acting as trustee.  Concurrently, YECA along with the County of Yolo as co-issuer, 
entered into a Master Equipment Lease/Purchase Agreement with Bank of America to finance the lease 
purchase of emergency communications equipment, which is considered a direct borrowing.  The 
agreement is collateralized by the equipment.  Lease payments will be used to finance the repayment of 
the Bonds.  The Bonds provide for a Federal subsidy of 45% of the interest paid on the Bonds to the 
issuer. The interest rate on the lease is 6.49%, with a maturity date of November 18, 2025. To obtain the 
subsidy, YECA must file a claim with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) when an interest payment on 
the Bonds is made.  The agreement contains default provisions whereby Bank of America may take 
possession of the equipment but cannot accelerate rental payments. 
 


Stated Present Value of
Interest Remaining Payments


Rate as of June 30, 2019
Governmental Activities:
   Equipment 6.49% 1,857,597$      


  
The cost of the equipment and related accumulated depreciation under capital lease is as follows:  
 


Governmental
Activities


Equipment 3,670,736$       


Less:  Accumulated Depreciation (1,438,822)        


2,231,914$       


 
Future debt service requirements at June 30, 2019, are as follows: 
 
 
 


Year Ending June 30, Payments
2020 375,128$           
2021 367,505            
2022 359,607            
2023 351,424            
2024 342,947            


2025-2028 497,854            
Total Future Lease Payments 2,294,465          


Less: Interest (436,868)           
Net Capital Lease 1,857,597$        


 
 







 


19 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS 
 
General Information about the Pension Plans 
 


Plans Description – All of YECA’s qualified employees are eligible to participate in the YECA’s 
Miscellaneous Plan or PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan (Plans), cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit 
pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  A full 
description of the Plans regarding number of employees covered, benefit provisions, assumptions (for 
funding, but not accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the June 30, 2017 
Annual Actuarial Valuation Report.  Details of the benefits provided can be obtained in Appendix B of 
the actuarial valuation reports.  These reports and CalPERS’ audited financial statements are publicly 
available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and 
Publications. 
 
The California Legislature passed and the Governor signed the “Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act 
of 2013” (PEPRA) on September 12, 2012.  PEPRA contained a number of provisions intended to reduce 
future pension obligations.  PEPRA primarily affects new pension plan members who are enrolled for the 
first time after December 2012.  Benefit provisions under the Plans and other requirements are established 
by State statute and YECA resolution. 
 
Benefits Provided – The benefits for the Plans are based on members’ years of services, age, final 
compensation, and benefit formula.  Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible 
members or beneficiaries.  Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after 
five years of credited service. 
 
The Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2019 are summarized as follows: 
 


Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013


Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 to 67 52 to 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of
 eligible compensation 1.426 to 2.418% 1.000 to 2.500%  


 
 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees Retirement Law (PERL) requires 
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the 
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Contributions are 
determined through the CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is 
the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.   YECA is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. 







 


20 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
General Information about the Pension Plans (continued) 
 


For the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 (the measurement date), the active employee 
contribution rate was 7.000% and 6.250% of member earnings and the employer contribution rate was 
16.810% and 6.903% of member earnings for the Miscellaneous Plan and PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan, 
respectively.  Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended.  It is the 
responsibility of YECA to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the impact due to any 
employer-paid member contributions or situations where members are paying a portion of the employer 
contribution. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the actual contributions totaled $1,120,998. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 
 


As of June 30, 2019, YECA reported a liability of $3,407,342 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, using an annual actuarial 
valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update procedures.  YECA’s 
net pension liability is the difference between its proportion of the total pension liability based on its share 
of the actuarial accrued liability and its proportion of the fiduciary net position based on its share of the 
market value of assets.  YECA’s proportion of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2019 and 2018 was 
0.03536% and 0.03515%, respectively, for an increase of 0.00021%. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, YECA recognized pension expense of $513,271.  At June 30, 
2019, YECA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 


Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources


Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 920,943$            -$                    
Differences between expected and actual experience 130,733              44,488                
Changes in assumptions 388,447              95,201                
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
 on pension plan investments 16,846                -                      
Change in employer's proportion 199,594              37,719                
Differences between the employer's contributions and
 the employer's proportionate share of contributions 36,314                187,396              


Totals 1,692,877$          364,804$            


 







 


21 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 


The $920,943 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension contributions subsequent to 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 
2020.  The remainder reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources will be recognized as 
pension expense as follows: 
 


Year Ending Deferred Inflows
June 30 (Outflows) of Resources


2020 337,142$                         
2021 197,912                           
2022 (97,277)                            
2023 (30,647)                            
2024 -                                  


Thereafter -                                  


Total 407,130$                         


 
 
Actuarial Assumptions – The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, and rolling forward total pension liability to June 30, 2018 using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement.  The June 30, 
2018 total pension liability was based on the following actuarial method and assumptions: 
 


Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Assumptions:


Investment Rate of Return 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table (1) Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power 


Protection Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies, 
2.75% thereafter.


(1) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS'-specific data.  The table includes 15 
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP2016.  For more 
details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report (based on CalPERS 
demographic data from 1997-2015) that can be found on the CalPERS website.


 
 
 
 







 


22 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 


Change of Assumptions – None. 
 
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERFC was 7.15 percent.  
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers 
will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return – The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments 
was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical 
returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes (which includes the agent plan and 
two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B and C funds), expected compound (geometric) returns were 
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block 
approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of 
benefits was calculated for each PERF fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the 
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows 
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set 
equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative 
expenses.  The expected real rates of return by asset classes can be found in CalPERS’s Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 
  
The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was 
calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset 
allocation. These geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses. 


Assumed Asset Real Return Real Return


Asset Class Allocation Years 1 - 10 (1) Years 11+ (2)


Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Global Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Sensitive 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% -0.92%


(1) An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period.
(2) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.


 







 


23 
 


NOTE 6:  PENSION PLANS (continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 
 


 
Sensitivity of YECA’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate – 
The following presents the net pension liability as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount 
rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.5 percent) 
than the current rate: 
 


Discount Rate Current Discount Discount Rate
- 1% (6.15%) Rate (7.15%) + 1% (8.15%)


YECA's Proportionate Share
 of Plans' Net Pension Liability 5,699,083$        3,407,342$        1,515,547$         


 
Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources – The Net Difference Between 
Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments is amortized over a five-year 
period on a straight-line basis. One-fifth is recognized in pension expense during the measurement period, 
and the remaining Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan 
Investments is amortized over the remaining amortization periods. The Net Difference Between Projected 
and Actual Investment Earnings on Pension Plan Investments in the Schedule of Collective Pension 
Amounts represents the unamortized balance relating to the current measurement period and the prior 
measurement periods on a net basis.  
  
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources relating to Differences Between 
Expected and Actual Experience and Changes of Assumptions are amortized over the Expected Average 
Remaining Service Lifetime (EARSL) of members provided with pensions through the Plan determined 
as of the beginning of the related measurement period. The EARSL for PERF C for the June 30, 2017 
measurement date is 3.8 years, which was obtained by dividing the total service years of 516,147 (the sum 
of remaining service lifetimes of all active employees) by 135,474 (the total number of participants: 
active, inactive, and retired) in PERF C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes 
equal to 0. Total future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due an event other 
than receiving a cash refund.  
  
 
Pension Plans Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the Plans’ fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued CalPERS financial report. 
 







 


24 
 


NOTE 7:  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
YECA offers to each non-safety employee a 401(a) Money Purchase Plan (MPP) administered by the 
VALIC Retirement Services Company.  Each participant has an individual account with VALIC into 
which all contributions are recorded.  The participants are offered various investment options through the 
MPP and are allowed to invest moneys in their account, at their own discretion, among the options.  
YECA may amend, modify, or terminate the MPP, upon approval of such amendment, modification, or 
termination by YECA’s Board of Director’s approval.  Employees covered by the MPP are eligible to 
participate from the date of employment.  The MPP defines YECA contributions which range from 3-6 
percent of an employee’s base salary based on the employee’s designated employee group.  Employee 
contributions to the MPP are not permitted.  Under the MPP each participant is 100 percent vested in the 
amounts credited to the participants account at all times.  During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, 
contributions paid to the MPP were $9,606.  
 
 
NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)  
 
Plan Description 
 


YECA sponsors a single-employer defined benefit plan to provide postemployment health benefits to 
eligible retirees and their spouses through CalPERS (the Plan).  Benefit allowance provisions are 
established through resolution between YECA and three employee groups:  general, supervisor, and 
management.  The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 
 
Plan members include current retirees and active employees of YECA.  Eligible plan members are YECA 
employees who have retired from active employment with YECA and have five years of service credit 
with CalPERS.  There is not a minimum service period with YECA to be eligible for the retiree 
health/medical benefit.   
 
Benefits Provided 
 
The benefit allowance provides a lifetime allowance to eligible plan members and their surviving spouses, 
if applicable.  The benefit allowance is provided in conjunction with the MOU terms allowing retirees to 
continue their current health insurance which also covers active members. For eligible plan members, 
YECA provides a maximum monthly benefit allowance of $253 for general and supervisor members and 
$700 per month for management.  Any and all insurance premium costs incurred by retirees above the 
monthly benefit allowance are borne by the retiree. 
 
Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 
At the OPEB liability measurement date of June 30, 2018, the following employees were covered by the 
benefit terms: 
 


 


Inactive employees or beneficiaries receiving benefit payments 15
Active employees 31


46


 
Contributions 


  


YECA does not currently have a pre-funding plan and is on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 







 


25 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Net OPEB Liability 
 
At June 30, 2019, YECA reported a net OPEB liability of $1,748,382.  The net OPEB liability was 
measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was 
determined by an Alternative Measurement Method valuation as of July 1, 2017 (June 30, 2017).  
Standard actuarial update procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 
 
 Salary increases    3.00 percent 
 Healthcare cost trend rate  6.00 percent for 2016; 5.00 percent for 2017;  
      5.00 percent for 2018; and 5.00 percent for 2019 
      and later years. 
 
Pre-retirement and post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table 
for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection. 
 
Actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017 valuation were based on a review of plan experience 
during the period June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 
 
Discount Rate 
 
GASB 75 requires a discount rate the reflects the following: 
 a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments – to the extent that the  
   OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position, if any, is projected to be sufficient to make projected 
  benefit payments and assets are expected to be invested using a strategy to achieve that  
  return.  
 b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an  
  average rating of AA/Aa or higher – to the extent that the conditions in (a) or not met. 
 
The discount rate used to measure YECA’s total OPEB liability is based on these requirements and the 
following information: 
 


Reporting Date
Measurement 


Date


Long-Term Expected 
Return of Plan 


Investments (if any)


Municipal Bond 20-
Year High Grade 


Rate Index Discount Rate


June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 4.00% 2.98% 2.98%  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


26 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 
 
The table below shows the changes in the total OPEB liability, the Plan Fiduciary Net Position (i.e. Fair 
value of Plan assets), and the net OPEB liability during the measurement period ending on June 30, 2018. 
 


Total OPEB 
Liability     


(a)


Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position     


(b)


Net OPEB 
Liability       
(a) - (b)


Balances at 6/30/2018 1,692,049$  -$                 1,692,049$  


Changes for the year:
Service cost 59,699         -                   59,699         
Interest 53,426         -                   53,426         
Changes of benefit terms -                  -                   -                  


Difference between expected and 
actual experience -                  -                   -                  
Changes of assumptions 32,927         -                   32,927         
Contributions - employer * -                  (89,719)         (89,719)        
Net investment income -                  -                   -                  
Benefit payments * (89,719)        89,719          -                  
Administrative expense -                  -                   -                  
    Net changes 56,333         -                   56,333         


Balances at 6/30/2019 1,748,382$  -$                 1,748,382$  


*  $70,966 of pay-as-you-go contributions made from sources outside of trust, plus
an implicit subsidy amount of $18,753.


Increase (Decrease)


 
 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (1.98%) or 1-percentage point higher 
(3.98%) than the current discount rate: 
 


 


1% Decrease 
1.98%


Discount 
Rate 2.98%


1% Increase 
3.98%


Net OPEB liability 1,995,072$    1,748,382$ 1,546,204$   
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


27 
 


NOTE 8:  OTHER POSTEMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (continued) 
 
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates 
 
The following presents the net OPEB liability, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage point lower (5.00% decreasing to 4.00%) 
or 1-percentage point higher (7.00% decreasing to 6.00%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 
 


1% Decrease (5.00% 
decreasing to 4.00%)


Trend rate (6.00% 
decreasing to 5.00%)


1% Increase (7.00% 
decreasing to 6.00%)


Net OPEB liability 1,536,255$             1,748,382$             2,007,985$             


OPEB Expense and Deferral of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 YECA recognized OPEB expense of $146,052.  OPEB expense 
represents the change in net OPEB liability during the measurement period, adjusted for actual 
contributions and the deferred recognition of changes in investment gain/loss, and actuarial assumptions 
or method.  At June 30, 2019 the reported deferred outflows of resources related to contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date is $76,939.  This amount will be recognized in OPEB expense in the 
following fiscal year.  
 
 
NOTE 9:  RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
YECA is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 
 
YECA participates in the Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Agency 
(YCPARMIA), a joint power agency (risk-sharing pool) made up of other governmental entities within 
the County.  YECA is covered for general and automobile, workers' compensation, property, pollution, 
fidelity, and cyber through YCPARMIA.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the California Joint 
Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for 
catastrophic general and automobile losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the CSAC Excess 
Insurance Authority (CSAC), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic workers’ 
compensation, property, and pollution losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in the Fidelity and 
Deposit Company of Maryland (FDCM), YECA is provided with an excess coverage fund for 
catastrophic fidelity losses.  Through YCPARMIA membership in Lloyd’s of London, YECA is provided 
with an excess coverage fund for catastrophic cyber losses.  Loss contingency reserves established by 
YCPARMIA are funded by contributions from member agencies.  
 
 
 







 


28 
 


NOTE 9:  RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 
 
The annual contribution YCPARMIA charges to each agency is based upon its pro-rata share of excess 
insurance premiums, charges for the pooled risk (losses) recognizing the deductible selected, claims 
adjusting and legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the YCPARMIA.  Settled claims 
from these risks did not exceed coverage for the past three years.  YECA's deductible and maximum 
coverage are as follows: 
  


Coverage Deductible YCPARMIA CJPRMA CSAC FDMD
Lloyd's of 
London


General and automobile 1,000$      500,000$     40,000,000$   -$                    -$                -$              
Workers' compensation 1,000        500,000       -                      50,000,000     -                  -                
Property 1,000        25,000         -                      959,357,100   -                  -                
Pollution -                100,000       -                      10,000,000     -                  -                
Fidelity 1,000        25,000         -                      -                      2,000,000   -                
Cyber Liability 1,000,000 


 
 
 
NOTE 10:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 
 
In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities”. The objective of this 
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and 
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.  
 
This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. 
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included 
to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary 
activities.  This statement is effective for YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2020. 
 
 
In June of 2017 GASB issued Statement No. 87, “Leases”.  This Statement increases the usefulness of 
governments' financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases 
that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a 
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.  A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control 
of the right to use another entity's nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an 
exchange or exchange-like transaction. Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, 
and equipment. Any contract that meets this definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, 
unless specifically excluded in this Statement.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


29 
 


NOTE 11:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS (continued) 
 
 
In June of 2018 GASB issued Statement No. 89, “Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the 
End of a Construction Period.”  This Statement enhances disclosures about capital assets and the cost of 
borrowing for a reporting period and simplifies the accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of 
a construction period.  Interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period will be recognized as 
an expense rather than being recorded as part of the cost of capital assets in a business-type activity or 
enterprise fund and interest cost incurred by a fund using the current financial resources measurement 
focus before the end of a construction period should be recognized as an expenditure on a basis consistent 
with governmental fund accounting principles. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. 
 
 
In August of 2018 the GASB issued Statement No. 90, “Majority Equity Interests-an amendment of 
GASB statements No. 14 and No. 61”.  The primary objectives of this Statement is to improve the 
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally 
separate organization and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain 
component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity interest 
in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding 
of the equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets 
the definition of an investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a 
special-purpose government engaged only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an 
endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or permanent fund. Those governments 
and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value. 
 
For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a 
government should report the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the 
government or fund that holds the equity interest should report an asset related to the majority 
equity interest using the equity method. This Statement establishes that ownership of a majority 
equity interest in a legally separate organization results in the government being financially 
accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the government should report 
that organization as a component unit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


30 
 


NOTE 11:  FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS (continued) 
 
This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent 
equity interest account for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources at acquisition value at the date the government acquired a 100 percent 
equity interest in the component unit. Transactions presented in flows statements of the 
component unit in that circumstance should include only transactions that occurred subsequent to 
the acquisition. 
   
The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 
15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged. The requirements should be applied retroactively, 
except for the provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity interest in a component unit 
and (2) reporting a component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity interest. 
Those provisions should be applied on a prospective basis.  Currently, the requirements of this 
statement do not impact YECA. 
 
In May of 2019 the GASB issued Statement No. 91, “Conduit Debt Obligations”.  The primary 
objectives of this Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by 
issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issurers, (2) 
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related not disclosures.  The 
requirements of this statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 
2020 or for YECA’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 


(Unaudited) 


 


 


  
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 







 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 


 
 


 


 
 


 


 
This page intentionally left blank 







Last 10 Fiscal Years *


FY 2019 FY 2018
Total OPEB liability


Service cost 59,699$          57,960$          
Interest 53,426            50,842            
Changes of benefit terms -                     -                      
Difference between expected and actual experience -                     -                      
Changes of assumptions 32,927            -                      
Benefit payments (89,719)          (81,581)           
Net change in total OPEB Liability 56,333            27,221            
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,692,049       1,664,828       
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) 1,748,382$     1,692,049$     


Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 89,719$          81,581$          
Net investment income -                     -                      
Benefit payments (89,719)          (81,581)           
Administrative expense -                     -                      
Net change in plan fiduciary net position -                     -                      
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning -                     -                      
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) -$                   -$                    


Net OPEB liability - ending (a) - (b) 1,748,382$     1,692,049$     


Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the toal 
OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00%


Covered employee payroll 2,827,312$     2,709,609$     


Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee 
payroll 61.84% 62.45%


Measurement date 6/30/2018 6/30/2017


*  FY 2018 is the first year of GASB 75.  Additional years will be presented as they become available.


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Plan - Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related 
Ratios


31







YECA's
Proportionate Plan's
Share of the Fiduciary


YECA's YECA's Net Pension Net Position as
Proportion Proportionate Liability as a a Percentage
of the Net Share of the YECA's Percentage of of the Plan's


Fiscal Measurement Net Pension Net Pension Covered its Covered Total Pension
Year Period Liability Liability Payroll Payroll Liability


2019 2018 0.035360% 3,407,342$    2,827,312$  120.52% 79.90%


2018 2017 0.035150% 3,485,446$    2,709,609$  128.63% 77.86%


2017 2016 0.034104% 2,951,088$    2,384,950$  123.74% 74.06%


2016 2015 0.035719% 2,451,730$    2,320,340$  105.66% 78.40%


2015 2014 0.038235% 2,379,173$    2,192,316$  108.52% 80.43%


* This is the fifth year of implementation, therefore only five years are presented.  Additional
   years will be presented as they become available.  Amounts presented above were determined
   as of June 30.


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of YECA's Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability


Last 10 Years*


32







Contributions
in Relation to Contributions as


Contractually the Contractually YECA's a Percentage
Measurement Required Required Contribution Covered of Covered


Year Contribution Contribution Excess Payroll Payroll


2019 420,943$      920,943$             500,000      2,973,096$  30.98%


2018 351,623$      351,623$             -              2,827,312$  12.44%


2017 323,079        323,079               -              2,709,609    11.92%


2016 348,330        588,764               240,434      2,384,950    24.69%


2015 292,497        292,497               -              2,320,340    12.61%


2014 284,046        284,046               -              2,192,316    12.96%


* This is the fifth year of implementation, therefore only five years are presented.  Additional
   years will be presented as they become available.  Amounts presented above were determined
   as of June 30.


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of YECA's Pension Contributions
Last 10 Years*


33







34 
 


NOTE 1:  SCHEDULE OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLAN – 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIONS 
 
YECA has not adopted a formal funding plan, and as such is on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 
The actuarial funding method and assumptions used to determine the net OPEB liability using an 
Alternative Method (AMM) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 were from an AMM valuation dated 
July 1, 2017: 
 
Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Actuarial
Actuarial assumptions:
  InflationDiscount rate 2.98%
  Salary increaseSalary increase 3.00% (1)


  Healthcare trend ratesHealthcare trend rates
6% in 2017 and trend downard to 


5% in 2018 and thereafter  
 


NOTE 2:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION 
LIABILITY 
 
In 2019 there were no changes to the benefit terms nor to financial reporting.  The June 30, 2017 
valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study from 1997 to 2015 (December 2017 
study), including updates to salary increases, mortality and retirement rates. 
 
NOTE 3:  SCHEDULE OF YECA’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2019 were from the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. 
 


Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial assumptions:
  Inflation 2.75%


  Salary increase Varies (1)


  Payroll growth 3.00% (2)


  Investment rate of return 7.375%


  Retirement age 2014 Experience Study (3)


  Mortality 2014 Experience Study (4)


(1) Depending on age, service, and type of employment.


(2) Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation.


(3)


(4)


The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for 
the period from 1997 to 2011.


The probabilites of mortality are based on the 2014 CalPERS Experience Study for 
the period 1997-2011.  Mortaility Improvement Scale MP-2014 modified to 
converge to ultimate mortality improvement rates in 2022 (updated from:  Mortality 
Improvement Scale AA)  


 







TOTAL YECA


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 45,000$             50,324$       48,004$         (2,320)$           
State -                     -               10,230           10,230            


Contributions 6,118,433          6,288,433    6,273,366      (15,067)           
Interest -                     -               85,227           85,227            
Other 58,741               58,741         62,018           3,277              
Transfers in 4,387,927          4,416,127    4,364,817      (51,310)           


Total Revenues 10,610,101        10,813,625  10,843,662    30,037            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 4,705,997          5,205,997    4,884,442      321,555          
Services and supplies 1,078,190          1,078,201    979,181         99,020            
Other 2,500                 2,500           2,022             478                 


Debt service:
Principal 249,737             249,737       249,737         -                  
Interest 132,750             132,750       132,750         -                  


Capital outlay 178,329             348,318       340,547         7,771              
Transfers out 4,387,927          4,416,127    4,364,817      51,310            
Contingency 241,000             -               -                 -                  


Total Expenditures 10,976,430        11,433,630  10,953,496    480,134          


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures (366,329)            (620,005)      (109,834)        510,171          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 350,000             600,000       2,582,305      1,982,305       


Fund Balance - end of year (16,329)$            (20,005)$      2,472,471$    2,492,476$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


35







Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Outflows and GAAP Expenditures:


Sources/inflows of resources
Total revenue from Budget and Actual schedule 10,843,662$   


Differences - budget to GAAP:


Transfers from other budget units/funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are
not revenues for financial reporting purposes. (4,364,817)      


Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance. 6,478,845$     


Uses/outflows of resources
Total Expenditures from Budget and Actual schedule 10,953,496$   


Differences - budget to GAAP:


Encumbrances are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes but are
outflows of budgetary resources (43,245)           


Transfers to other budget units/funds are outflows of budgetary resources but are
not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. (4,364,817)      


Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balance. 6,545,434$     


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Required Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


36







37 
 


NOTE 1:  BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
YECA prepares and legally adopts a final budget, on or before October 2 of each fiscal year.  YECA’s 
fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30.  In practice budgets are usually adopted before the new 
fiscal year begins on July 1.  However, if budgets are adopted after July 1, operations commencing July 1 
is governed by the proposed budget presented to the JPA Board of Directors by March 1.  
 
After the budget is approved, the Executive Director is authorized to execute transfers within accounting 
units as long as the total expenditures for each accounting unit remains unchanged.   
 
An operating budget is adopted each fiscal year on the modified accrual basis.  Unexpended contract and 
purchase order amounts at year-end represent the estimated amount of expenditures ultimately to result if 
the unperformed contracts in process at year-end are completed or purchase commitments satisfied.  Such 
year-end unexpended contract and purchase order balances are reported as unassigned fund balance and 
do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments may be honored during the 
subsequent year and included in the subsequent year's budget.   
 
Excess Expenditures over Appropriations 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the following accounting unit expenditures exceeded the final budget: 
 


 The Rumsey Radio accounting unit, 69205329518357, expenditures exceeded final 
appropriations by $4,668.  Expenditures for this project came in over budget in fiscal year 2019.  
YECA is planning to request additional funding from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation to fund the 
additional amount. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







38 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 
. 







 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
(Unaudited) 


 
 


  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 







ADMINISTRATION (8350)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal 45,000$             2,300$         -$               (2,300)$           
State -                     -               1,027             1,027              


Contributions 6,118,433          6,118,433    6,127,732      9,299              
Interest -                     -               57,286           57,286            
Other 58,741               58,741         61,055           2,314              


Total Revenues 6,222,174          6,179,474    6,247,100      67,626            


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 843,110             1,370,610    1,385,329      (14,719)           
Services and supplies 553,150             498,450       484,300         14,150            
Other 2,500                 2,500           2,022             478                 


Debt service:
Principal 249,737             249,737       249,737         -                  
Interest 132,750             132,750       132,750         -                  


Capital outlay 178,329             135,629       112,001         23,628            
Transfers out 4,387,927          4,416,127    4,364,817      51,310            
Contingencies 241,000             -               -                 -                  


Total Expenditures 6,588,503          6,805,803    6,730,956      74,847            


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures (366,329)            (626,329)      (483,856)        142,473          


OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Capital lease proceeds -                     -               -                 -                  


Changes in Fund Balance (366,329)            (626,329)      (483,856)        142,473          


Fund Balance - beginning of year 350,000             600,000       2,582,305      1,982,305       


Fund Balance - end of year (16,329)$            (26,329)$      2,098,449$    2,124,778$     


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


39







DISPATCH (8351)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


State -$                   -$             9,203$           9,203$            
Other -                     -               963                963                 
Transfers in 4,387,927          4,267,127    3,868,475      (398,652)         


Total Revenues 4,387,927          4,267,127    3,878,641      (388,486)         


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Salaries and employee benefits 3,862,887          3,835,387    3,499,113      336,274          
Services and supplies 525,040             430,740       379,528         51,212            


Capital outlay -                     -               5,885             (5,885)             
Total Expenditures 4,387,927          4,266,127    3,884,526      381,601          


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     1,000           (5,885)            (6,885)             


Changes in Fund Balance -                     1,000           (5,885)            (6,885)             


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   1,000$         (5,885)$          (6,885)$           


Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in


Supplementary Information


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


40







HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT 2016 (8355)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal -$                   42,700$       42,680$         (20)$                
Total Revenues -                     42,700         42,680           (20)                  


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                     42,700         42,680           20                   


Total Expenditures -                     42,700         42,680           20                   


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     -               -                 -                  


Changes in Fund Balance -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             -$               -$                


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


41







YECA IT (8356)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Transfers in -$                   149,000$     115,342$       (33,658)$         


Total Revenues -                     149,000       115,342         (33,658)           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Services and supplies -                     149,000       115,342         33,658            


Total Expenditures -                     149,000       115,342         33,658            


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     -               -                 -                  


Changes in Fund Balance -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             -$               -$                


RUMSEY RADIO (8357)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Contributions -$                   170,000$     145,634$       (24,366)           


Total Revenues -                     170,000       145,634         (24,366)           


EXPENDITURES
Current:


Public safety - 911 communications
Services and supplies -                     11                11                  -                  


Capital outlay -                     169,989       174,657         (4,668)             
Total Expenditures -                     170,000       174,668         (4,668)             


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     -               (29,034)          (29,034)           


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             (29,034)$        (29,034)$         


Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in


42







HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT 2017 (8365)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Intergovernmental revenue:


Federal -$                   5,324$         5,324$           -$                
Total Revenues -                     5,324           5,324             -                  


EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay -                     5,324           5,324             -                  


Total Expenditures -                     5,324           5,324             -                  


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     -               -                 -                  


Changes in Fund Balance -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             -$               -$                


YECA RESERVES (8359)


Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget


REVENUES
Interest -$                   -$             27,941$         27,941$          
Transfers in -                     -               381,000         381,000          


Total Revenues -                     -               408,941         408,941          


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures -                     -               408,941         408,941          


Changes in Fund Balance -                     -               408,941         408,941          


Fund Balance - beginning of year -                     -               -                 -                  


Fund Balance - end of year -$                   -$             408,941$       408,941$        


YOLO EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS AGENCY


Supplementary Information


Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund


For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019


43







 


44 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This page intentionally left blank 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


OTHER REPORT 
 
 
. 







 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


This Page Intentionally Left Blank 







550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 
Sacramento, California 95825 


Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 


45 


INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND 
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 


PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 


To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 
Woodland, California 


We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) as of 
and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
YECA’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 20, 2020. 


Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 


In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered YECA’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose 
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of YECA’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s 
internal control.  


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of YECA’s financial statements will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention 
by those charged with governance.   


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 


Compliance and Other Matters 


As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether YECA’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 


 







To the Board of Directors 
Yolo Emergency Communications Agency 


46 


Purpose of this Report 


The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of YECA’s internal control or on compliance.  
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
YECA’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 


 
January 20, 2020 











